


Table of Contents
February 15, 2023

Agenda Item #IIL...c.ooovniiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e Approval of Agenda

Agenda Item #IV.................. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of February 1, 2023

Agenda Item #VIL.c.ocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e General Manager / Staff Reports



Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #III



i

" Board of Public Utilities

Kansas City, Kansas
BOARD AGENDA

l

Regular Session
February 15, 2023 — 6:00 P.M.

L Call to Order
II. Roll Call

Mary L. Gonzales, At Large, Position 1

Tom Groneman, District 2

David Haley, At Large, Position 2

Robert L. Milan, Sr., District 1

Rose Mulvany Henry, At Large, Position 3

Jeff Bryant, District 3
III. Approval of Agenda
IV. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of February 1, 2023
V. Public Comments
VL BPU Utility Assistance Program - Todd Jordan w/United Way
VIIL General Manager / Staff Reports

1. December 2022 Financials

11. KMEA Board Appointments

111. Miscellaneous Comments
VIII. Board Comments
IX. Executive Session

X. Adjourn



Approval of Minutes
Regular Session 2-1-23
Agenda [tem #IV



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Regular Session on Wednesday, February 1, 2023 at 6:00 P.M. The following Board Members
were present: Rose Mulvany Henry, President; Robert L. Milan, Secretary; Jeff Bryant, Mary
Gonzales. Thomas Groneman, Vice President and David Haley attended via Zoom.

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Wendy Green, Senior Counsel; Lori
Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Jeremy Ash, Interim Chief
Operating Officer; Johnetta Hinson, Executive Director Customer Service; Steve Green,
Executive Director Water Operations; Darrin McNew, Acting Executive Director Electric
Operations; Glen Brendel, Executive Director Electric Production; Jerin Purtee, Executive
Director Electric Supply; Maurice Moss, Executive Director Corporate Compliance; Jerry
Sullivan, Chief Information Officer; David Mehlhaff, Chief Communications Officer; Dennis
Dumovich, Director of Human Resources; Dustin Miller, Director of Applications; Patrice
Townsend, Director Utility Services; Gabriela Freeman, Supervisor Customer Services; Mark
Masloski, Meter Data Management System Analyst; Al Garcia, Key Account Utility Specialist;
and Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager.

A video of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities and can be found on the
BPU website, www.bpu.com.

Ms. Mulvany Henry called the Board meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. She welcomed all
that were listening to or viewing the meeting. She informed all that the meeting was being
recorded including video and audio. During the public comment section, those attending in
person, wishing to speak, should use the sign-up sheet at the entry and provide their name and
address. Public comments were limited to five minutes and should be addressed to the Board.
Members of the public who wished to speak to the Board using Zoom needed to use the Raise
Hand feature at the bottom of the application or window to signal that they wish to address the
board during the public comment section. Members of the public connected by phone only,
needed to press *9 to indicate they wished to address the Board in the public comment section.
No confidential information should be shared, including, account information. Staff would not
provide individual account information during an open meeting. As always, the public could
also email or call the BPU with any concerns. Ms. Mulvany Henry introduced herself and the
other Board Members along with the General Manager, and Legal Counsel.

Roll call was taken and all Board Members were present, Mr. Haley and Mr. Groneman
via Zoom.

Page 1 of 4



REGULAR SESSION —-WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2023
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #3 — Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms. Mulvany
Henry and unanimously carried.

Item #4— Approval of Regular Session Minutes of January 18, 2023

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Regular Session of January 18,
2023, by Ms. Gonzales, seconded by Mr. Bryant, and unanimously carried.

Item #5— Public Comments

Tscher Manck, Wyandotte County, expressed her concerns including customer bills.

Mr. Johnson offered to meet with Ms. Manck after the Board meeting to obtain more
information regarding her concerns.

Ms. Manaea Taylor (could not confirm spelling), Wyandotte County, expressed her
thoughts on public comment time and also utility charges.

Mr. Johnson asked her to speak with Ms. Johnetta Hinson, Executive Director Customer
Service who was in attendance.

Item #6— General Manager / Staff Reports

i.  Customer Service Update: Ms. Gabriela Freeman, Supervisor Customer Services,
reviewed the Self-Service options that customers had available to pay their monthly bill.
Her review and demonstration encompassed, the phone system as well as the BPU
website. When speaking about the website, she highlighted helpful and informative tabs
available for residential customers. (See attached PowerPoint.)

Ms. Freeman responded to comments and questions from the Board.
There was Board discussion about having an estimate of Unified Government (UG)
charges similar to BPU’s Energy Engage. The Board also spoke about the request to

have separate bills for UG and BPU charges, and what the projected cost could be to
implement such a change.

Page 2 of 4



REGULAR SESSION —-WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board also discussed the benefits of having BPU/UG quarterly meetings resume in
2023 and also having a joint meeting with the UG Commissioners and the BPU Board to
discuss the issues.

ii.  Chief Operating Officer (COO) Update: Mr. Jeremy Ash, Interim Chief Operating
Officer, spoke to the Board about his position as interim COO and the objectives of the
Operations Executive Team which encompassed, the Executive Directors of; Electric
Supply, Water Operations Electric Productions and the Interim Executive Director of
Electric Operations. (See attached PowerPoint.)

Mr. Ash responded to questions and comments from the Board.

iii.  Miscellaneous Comments: Mr. Johnson informed the Board that work was still
continuing on the search for a new County Administrator. He said there would be a
public meet and greet on February 7™ for the three final candidates.

He also reported that at the end of February, Executive Assistant, Jenny Burley-Krenzer
would be retiring.

Item #9 — Board Comments

Ms. Gonzales said that she had begun studying the issue of community engagement
and would like for it to be a topic at the next Work Session.

Mr. Groneman thanked the staff for the great informative presentations. He also said he
was on the mend and planned on being at the next Board meeting.

Mr. Haley said he was attending the Kansas Municipal Utilities meeting in Topeka.
He appreciated both updated and looked forward to continuing the discussion involving
Customer Service. He also looked forward to hearing from Ms. Burley-Krenzer at the next
meeting.

Mr. Milan congratulated Customer Service for their presentation and also thanked Mr.
David Mehlhaff, Chief Communications Officer, for making sure the website had informative
information for the public.

Ms. Mulvany Henry said that there was going to be a Charter Ordinance amendment
presented at Unified Government Commission meeting, February 2", regarding the PILOT
and separating residential customers and all other classes of customers. She also thanked Ms.

Page 3 of 4



REGULAR SESSION —-WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Gonzales for beginning discussions with the community regarding the information that had
been sent to the Board and General Manager. She agreed that the topic should be on the Work
Session agenda to talk about next steps. She also thanked Ms. Freeman for her presentation
and thorough discussion of the website. She also thanked Mr. Ash for his informative
presentation.

Mr. Bryant expressed his thanks for the evening’s presentations. He also thanked staff
and the crews for the work that they do out in the elements. Their work was truly appreciated.

Ttem #10 — Adjourn

At 7:52 P.M. a motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Milan and
unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 4 of 4














































































General Manager/Staff Reports
Agenda Item #VII



A [EHIERA
ﬁhg [3[0eirag G 0g

Rl

ﬁnvquﬁvn.n

DENRLEH)

SUENE Pty A EmE




0¢

LT

9¢

14

11

o~

SJUDUSIAUT PUE YSE) JO JUIWINE)G
938.19A0)) IIAIIG 1GI(]
SOLIITA] [BIOURUIY
TC0T ‘T€ 12quadd( nay) [ Arenuep — LIBWWING UOI)INIISUO))
7707 ‘1€ 19quiddd(q nay) [ Argnuep — uostiedwo)) yo3png
nun suneledQ 101 M
nun SunzeredQ) o11309g
spun SuneradQ v

S}ISSY JON Ul 93uBy)) puk sasuddX [ ‘SINUIAIY JO SIUUI)B)G

199YS ddue[eg pajipneu ) Suluiquio))

SINHLNOD A0 HTdV.L

Sjusawv)e)g |e1oueUl
220Z 19quissaq Ateulwijaid

mr——

SHLLI'TILAO OI'Td0d 40 aavod
SVSNVI ‘ALID SVSNV

















































































LT

OVD/04D
upsny *D) Ko

LYN) ) .s%wm

e 90°¢ 9LT STOT/PRUIQUIOD TTOT/I9IBM 0€0T/211399]F - 93RI0A0D
9TV 886 LY 78T°T0V°S 8LE°899 vy $ AlIe - 991A19G 1qo(J [BNUUY WNWIXBIA]
98'C 91°C SLT $20T/PaUlqUIO]y  ZTZOTH9IBM 6T0T/21199[ - 98RI9A0D
¥99°90T°CS 6L9°606°1 1 9€0°088 vt $ 199(J [€10], - 991AI9S 1qa(] [eNUUY WNWIXBA]
6SLTLO6Y] 920°10L°ST €ELILECTI $ SONUOAY 1N
(r6E"sre5TT) (Lv'v9e'LD) (L96°086°L61) sosuadxy soueuL)uIRy pue Suljeradp
€S18ITVLE £51°590°¢S 00L°TSE1TE $ sanuaAYY

TT0T "1¢ 1quedsd 20T [€ 1quads(d 20T ‘1€ 19quiodac]
Suipuy syuopy 71 Suipuyg syuopw 71 Suipug SUIUOIN Z1
pauiquoy) 121e M\ 211994

"sasuadxy eoueusjuIely pue uoleIad() Ssof WSYSAS A1) OY) JO SANUDASY Slf) SUESLU SONUIAY 19N],,

-1911enb
Jepuofed yons yym Juipus pouad yuow sAjam} ay) 10§ waIsAS AN|111) ) JO SANUIAY JON A} J1R[No[Rd O} paiinbai s1 samnn o1qng jo pieog
3} “anjuopu] Jsnij, PaleISay UL PApUsSLy Puoddg alf) ul paulyap se sainjuapu] [ejustusiddng Aue pue 910z ‘g Joquada(] Jo se DAY b10T ‘1
aun{ Jo se pajep ‘aInjuopu] Jsnij, pajeIsay| pue popusuly puodsg oy ul pauljop se ‘saanjuapuj [ejustusjddng oy jo syuswannbar oyy 01 Suipioooy

7707 10quIoos(]
Popud YIUOA /Y], 104
SOBIIN 21qnd jo preoq
a1 10J SaNUADY 19N JO
UOnR[NO[R)) JO BIIJIIA))



8T

"SONUIAJI wcmum.smo..coc Snoaue[{adsit 1310 pue SJuaUISaAUL

uo )sa103ul ‘[esodsip (se ‘[ejual Juswyorye 3[0d/19M0) S39) 193UUOISIP/IOUUOD ‘SIUNOISIP PIYSLIO]  :SIPNJoUI IO pue swoout 1sa191u] (7))

awoour Sunjelado-uou Jay3o pue uondarold a1y ‘senuoyine oijqnd ‘SunySy AemysSiy :sopnjour soles 1y (1) :seION

"SanuaAal A1eurpioelixa apnjout jou j[eys pue Korjod asueinsu; sreridoidde ue Aq pa1saod waIsAS ANju syl Aq pa.Lnoul ssoj

Aue 01 30adsa1 yam pred spasooid apnjour Jou [[eys wwia) Yans Inq “Spasooid puog WO PIALIDP pun, UOIONISUO.) i ur satuour asoyy 3daoxa (417 ‘sung pajep

1SN JO 2IMudpU] ) UlaIaY Payst|qeisa spuny oy Jo AUE ul SILUOW JO JUSWISOAUL ) WOLJ POALISP SWODU] [[B SIPNJIUI PUE ‘WaISAS AJ[H[] oS Jo syonpoud

pUB S321A155 JO 35N pue ofes oy} woy pue waisks Aupnn syl o 30adsar yum dg oY1 Aq pesoduur saSreyo pue sojel Sutpnjour ‘walsKs Aujup oy woy ndg

o) Aq PaAIa9a1 SANUGAI [[B SAPNOUI PUB “OSIMIDYIO 10 WAISAS AII|II() oY) O} SIUBLLIBNAG o siedol ‘Sjuswogie[uo ‘suolsualxs wol Sunmsal Jayjaym Joaiaty

wed Joyjo Jo joafoid Aue 1o waskg AN o Jo jonuod pue uolerado YuswaSeurw sy woy Ndd 9Ul AQ PaALISp SNUSA3I PUB SUIOOU] [[B UBSW , SONUIAY,,

(1L SV4) Juounsnfpe uopel[1ou099l () ueuodio)) a1ey ASIaug 10y PILIBJOP SNUSADY

€SIV pLE £51°690°¢S 00L°TSE°1Z¢ $
(8€0°91) - (8£0°91)

¥85°7T6°01 €PT96£°T 17€975°8

v68°€LOLE 9Tr°615°S 891 ¥SS I ¢
L89°€T6°81 0S6°TTE°1 LELO09LT

178°086 TEr619 68€°19¢

605 1P 11 SISI19 v66°678°01

G81°¢EL LS 79TY0T9 €T6°8TS°1S
$9€°L96°9T1 0LETYO 11 S66vTESTI

o1 16€011 SST6YL YT 168°119°G8 $

TC0C 'T€ 13quisdad  TZ0Z 1€ 10quada(
Sulpuy SYUOIN 7|  Sulpug SYIUO 7|

pauiquio)) Io1e M

720 1€ _/quadsq
Suipug SyIUON 71
o109

SHONHAHY
[ H1qlyxy

SANUIAY (IO,

sguiuleq pun, uolONNSUOY) :SSI7]

+dd/[9N] - SNUSAY PaLIga(]
9oUBNSS] JO }S0)) puog

(2) 1O pue swoodu] )sa1aju]
SoXe ], JO N3IT U] Juswiked
S9[eg 2[eSA[OYM

(1) sees YO

sjooyos

So[eS [eLIISNpU]

$9[BG [RIoIWIWIO))

S9[eS [BIUIPISAY

SaNudAdY AN B0



6¢C

"1d€ 2 Aq pazijendes are Yoiym ‘jory pue soxe) Fuspnjou ‘swap Apadoid yons pue ‘WS Anmn oy Jo santadoad Aue jo uonisodsip
10410 10 UONEN[BAIL ‘UONEOISSE[DD] JUSIIUOPUR]E DJES OY) “WO1] SHUWAIaI 10 ‘0) suaworoidur 10 SUOISUdIXD ‘SjudwIdNaq ‘sjuawasedar ‘suonippe [ejided 1of 1ojaloy) apew sofieyd 10 ‘51509
M€l 2y 1o L1 5Y) JO SSOUpIGapuy JaYyio Jo papuog jo uonezitiowe o [ediound jo juowAed ay) 10y sa3Ieyo pue SaBILYD 1S9 ‘SO]qIBURIUY JO UOHEZNIOWE ‘SWayl asuadxd Sulnooo Anuanbayjut
10 jensnun AJ[eLI2)EW 10 AIRUIPIORNXS “JOJOIOY) SOAIISII 10 SATIBYD 20UD9S9[0SGO 10 uoneoaidop “soxu) jo noyp ut sjuawiked opnjout jou op sosuadxs| souBLMUIEIN PUE UoNEId(Q ‘sopdiourid Fununoosoe
pardeooe Ajjesouad (m aouepiodsoe ut sosuadxgy ooueudjurely pue Suneradg 9Q 01 paIapISU0d dIL Ydtym S1S03 J0YI0 AUE PuE JOPUNIAY AISNI], oY) Jo osoyl Fupnpoul ‘Kieronpy Aue jo sosuadxo
pue 09} oy ‘sajdround Jununoosoe paydonoe Ajjesousd sopun wosAg Ann oy o1 ajqesojre Apadoad Juaixa oyy 03 ‘mer £q 10 A1 o1y Jo soueuipio £q 11d4€ 2Y) Aq pied oq 03 pannbos suonediqo
10 sasuadxd Juakno Aue 901A19s uoissiwsuel) pue jomod paseyaind Jo 1500 o1 ‘S)s00 Jony ‘sdBlIeyd [riudwWuIoA0d Iaylo “(Joasay) nolj ur sjudwAed Fuipnpour jou jnq) soxe) ‘SO0IAIDS [BOIUYDD) pue
Buyl{nsuod [eUONIPPE JO 1500 2y} puE SosUAdXa PuE $99] KIOSIAPE ferouruyj pue Jupunoade ‘unoouidus ‘fedo] ‘swnjwaid sourinsul ‘sasuadya JuslAINAI pue uotsuad ‘vonezijeidsoy ‘yyeay soskordua
‘sodem pue sauefes ‘sjuswaoe]dal pue sjemouas ‘siredar A1RUIpIO JO $1509 o1 Jo juawiked oy 10j A1essa0au Aouow jje Suipnjour ‘pasnbar Ajgieipawuws uay) Jou St yatym Jo juswked oy ‘swoy yans

10 9pise 195 9 01 pa1tnbar AjqeuosEar A3uow Jo syunowe ‘o) pajwi| jou NG ‘uipnjour ‘WolsAg Ann sy) aresado pue utejuipWw 0} A1BSSO00U SPUNJ Oy SUBSW _ SOSUDANE] SOUBLOUIR pUE uonerdQ,,

"SPUOg 2nUIAIY FuIpurISINO U0 ISUIAXI 1SIIIUI SOPNJOXT 4

POESHESTT LTV YIELT L96°086°L61 $ sasuadxy] souruauiely % Supesadp
(P68°E€LO'LE) (9Z°615°S) (89%°PSS°1¢€) SIXE, JO N2l up juatlihe iS5
(9€1°€5T° 1) (6v8°11£°8) (L8T°196°Z¢) uofjeziIowy puy uoljeioaidoy :s597]

YTHTLY E0E TOLS6I 1Y TTLIILY T9T $ sSasuadxg Bunesodg

2202 1€ 1_quisdaq CC0Z 1€ 13quisss T20¢ "T€ P_quadsq
Buipug syuo 71 duipug syiuo 1 Buipug syuo 1
paulquo)) 198 M OL1N09[

SHSNAJXH HONVNHINIVIN ANV SNOILVIAdO

¢ HuqQiuxyq



0¢

£00-00T-20 Adtjod BUHBPING [el3UBLY NdE SY3 UI PAYSHGRISA SE SPUN) 9AIAS3J Y3 puny Ajny 03 PAPaaU Junowe 3y sjuasaldal JJuejeq YSed palouIsaIun ayl

(£10°958’€T) $ (€T2’2L9) (bOE'8LT'ET) S
€9'€88'88 S 7€1'898vT TET'STOY9 S
SL6'T S6E 085'T
ETE'ELBET 000°000°T ETEEL6TT
888°79S'TT 888°79S'TT -

S8Y'SEE’S S8Y'789 000°€S9’Y

€29'508 - £29508

€6E9TL - €6E9TL

000°00S°T 000°0ST 000°0SE'T

€L7'9ST6 - €L7'9ST'6

0000629 000'06Z'9 -

AR TAN I 626'8VY'E ST0'9499T

00000T'T 000022 000088

000°000'T 000002 000008

695°9TEL S SESETET PE0’€00'9 S
9vv'L20'sL S 6TS06T 2 L26'9€8°0S S

(£89°€0€°LTS) (89T°€¥S'SS) (STS094°19v)
18€°96£°01S S£9°722'9s 90L'€ELSPSY
WL YESTS S CTO'T1SET 9£L'€208S S

Uu:BEOU EESLFY uw._uumm

e S Y

2207 "TE 13quiadeg

20T "TE 4oqwadag

Z¢0Z Tt 19qwadaqg

SINIIAILSIANI ANV HSVYD

S3ILNILN 21719Nd 40 Q¥vO09

SIUIWISBAU| pue yse) paidlilsalun

SUOHIISAY (€10,
pung JuawdojaAa( JIouoI]

JuswaNnbay aAsasay Juinesado Suuewsy

Judwdojanag waisAs
720 10§ 3AI3saY uonanuisuo) suiodup
Y0Z0Z pung uopdNIIsuo)
29T0Z PuUn4 UoPNIISUOD)
pung Aduagiawg pue juawasoiduuy
punjg uofiezijigels aiey
pung uononpay 193
pung 331A135 193Q
dwo) ,s1a3JoM- 3AI9SaY dueansu) y[3s
Aupiger) o1qng - aaJasay ssueunsuy jjas
usodaq 13wo1sn)

SIUBLISBAUL PUE YSe) JO SUOIILISIY

TZ/TE/TT 4O S SJUDLUISAAUY pue yse)
aleQ 03 Jed) SyudwAed ysed

aleQ 031 Jeaj sydidday ysed

TZ/T0/10J0 SY  SIUaWISaAUf pue ysed Suuuidag












EXCERPT OF BYLAWS OF KANSAS MUNICPAL ENERGY AGENCY
ARTICLE V
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 5.1. Selection of Directors. The property and business of the Agency shall be managed by the Board of
Directors of the Agency. The Board of Directors shall consist of two (2) Directors for each Member, provided that there
shall be not less than seven (7) Directors. The Directors shall be selected by the governing bodies of the Members. In the
event that the number of Members is less than seven (7), each Member shall be represented by the number of Directors
which would constitute a Board of Directors of not less than seven (7) Members, provided that each Member shall select
the same number of Directors. Each Member must designate the two (2) Directors as “Director-1” and “Director-2”.

The term of each Director shall be for a period of two (2) years except that the initial term of a number equal to
one half of the Directors, comprised of those individuals designated as Director-2, shall be selected to a term of one (1)
year. Any Director selected by a Member may be removed at any time by the Member selecting the Director.
Each Director so selected shall (a) reside within the territory served by the electric utility of the selecting Member;
or (b) be an employee of the selecting Member. Each Director shall meet all other requirements of the Act and the
Agreement. Any such selection (other than a replacement selection) shall occur prior to the annual meeting of the
Agency. Written evidence of selection shall be forwarded by the City Clerk or other authorized official of the Member
to the Agency in writing prior to the annual meeting. Each Director shall continue in office until a successor is selected
in accordance with this Article V.

Section 5.2. Voting Powers. Each Member shall be entitled to one Director vote on the Board of Directors which
shall be equal to the vote of every other Member. Such vote shall be cast on behalf of the Member by Director-1 of such
Member, if present; if such Director-1 is not present then by Director-2. Other than actions required in Article Xii hereof,
all actions of the Board of Directors shall be made upon affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors entitled to vote and
voting on such action.

Section 5.3. Compensation. Except as may be specifically authorized by the Board of Directors, no Director
shall receive payment from the Agency for any time spent in attending meetings of the Board of Directors or
otherwise conducting business of the Agency. To the extent that funds are available, the Board of Directors, the
Executive Committee, or the General Manager may authorize payment of expenses for travel in connection with the
business of the Agency for other than meetings of the Board of Directors pursuant to the Act.

Section 5.4. Vacancies. In the event of a vacancy on the Board of Directors the appropriate Member shall select
an individual to fill such vacancy for the remainder of the term in accordance with the same procedure as set forth for
the selection of the initial Director. Written evidence of selection shall be provided to the Agency before voting
privileges will take effect.

Section 5.5. Removal or Resignation. A Director may be removed only by the governing body of the
Member selecting such Director. Any Director may resign by providing notice to the governing body of the Member the
Director represents. The governing body shall certify to the Agency such removal or resignation of a Director.

Section 5.6. Successor Director. Upon removal or resignation of a Director, a successor Director will be selected
by the governing body in the same manner as the original Director was selected, and the successor Director will
be certified by the governing body to the Agency in the same manner as the original Director was certified. The
successor Director shall serve for the remainder of the unexpired term of the original Director, subject to the rights of the
governing body and such successor Director under Section 5.5 of these Bylaws.

Section 5.7. Alternates. Each Member shall designate an Alternate or Alternates for the Director in the same
manner as the Directors are designated. In the event any Director is unable to attend a meeting, any duly
appointed Alternate may substitute at the meeting of the Board of Directors for such Director. The Member shall provide
the Agency with written notification of the selection of such Alternate or Alternates. In the event neither Director
designated by the Member is present, the Alternate may vote on behalf of such Member unless the governing body
of the Member has specifically prohibited the Alternate from voting on the Member’s behalf. If more than one Alternate
is designated by the Member, the governing body shall specify in its designation the order in which the Alternates shall
have voting rights on behalf of the Member.

Adopted by the Board of Directors july 3, 2019






